CITY OF LEAVENWORTH
PLANNING COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N. 5" Street
Leavenworth, KS 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, January 6, 2020
6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:
1. Roll Call/Establish Quorum

2. Approval of Minutes: December 2, 2019

NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2020-01 SUP - 869 SHERMAN AVENUE

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2020-01 SUP — 869 Sherman Avenue.

The

applicant is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a two-family dwelling in the R1-6
zoning district, located at 869 Sherman Avenue. Two-family dwellings are allowed in

the R1-6 zoning district with the approval of a Special Use Permit.

2. Election of Officers

OTHER BUSINESS:

NONE

ADJOURN




CITY OF LEAVENWORTH PLANNING COMMISSION

COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N 5% Street, Leavenworth, Kansas 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, December 2, 2019
6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER:

Commiissioners Present Commissioners Absent
Jay Byrne Sherry Hines Whitson
Mike Burke
John Karrasch
Linda Bohnsack
Camalla Leonhard City Staff Present
Claude Wiedower Julie Hurley

Michelle Baragary
Madam Chairman Leonhard called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and noted a quorum was present.

Approval of Minutes: September 9, 2019
Madam Chairman Leonhard asked for comments or a motion on the minutes presented for approval: September

9, 2019. Mr. Byrne moved to accept the minutes as presented, seconded by Ms. Bohnsack. The minutes were
approved by a vote of 6-0.

OLD BUSINESS:

None

NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2019-15 SUP — 729 PENNSYLVANIA

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2019-15 SUP — 729 Pennsylvania. The applicant is requesting a
Special Use Permit to allow the operation of an adult daycare center at 729 Pennsylvania in an existing
building located on the Saint Casmir Church property.

Madam Chairman Leonhard called for the staff report.

Planning Director Julie Hurley the applicant, Elaine Belardo, is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow the
operation of an adult daycare center at 729 Pennsylvania Avenue in an existing building located on the Saint
Casmir Church Property. The property is currently zoned R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential
District. The adopted Development Regulations do not have a definition for “Adult Daycare Center”.
Therefore, staff evaluated the request in conformance with the closest defined use, that being Child Care
Center. Child Care Centers are allowed in the R1-6 zoning district with issuance of a Special Use Permit.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 1 December 2, 2019



Ms. Belardo represents The Deeper Window Project organization, a 501(c)(3), and is not affiliated with the
Roman Catholic Archdiocese of Kansas City or with Saint Casmir Parish. The proposed use involves daytime
care and programming for adults living with early to middle stages of dementia. There will be two 16-
person groups that meet either Monday/Wednesday or Tuesday/Thursday, with Friday open for
socialization at the facility. Participants will meet from 9am to 3pm for art, music, drama, cognitive,
stimulation, community projects, and peer support. The proposed use is a nonmedical program, offering
respite to the participants’ caregivers. The program will be staffed by a primary and assistant facilitator,
with additional therapists and volunteers participating for various activities.

The State of Kansas does not require licensure for Adult Daycare facilities.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:

1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies with all provision of the City of Leavenworth
Development Regulations.

2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

There is a current need within the community for Adult Daycare uses. Residents caring for family
members with dementia or Alzheimer’s have few to no resources for the type of service being
proposed. The proposed facility will allow caregivers respire and help to improve the overall
wellbeing of both caregivers and participants.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood
in which it is located.

Staff does not feel that the proposed use will cause any substantial injury to the value of other
property in the neighborhood.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or
conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to
it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent
development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district
regulations.

No new structures or building modifications are proposed as part of this special use permit. The
property will continue to look and function as it currently does. There was previously a
preschool/daycare facility located in the subject property, operated by St. Casmir Parish.

Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas statute.
Since notifications were mailed, staff has received no comments or inquiries.

Nationally, there continues to be an increased demand for daycare facilities offering services for adults with
dementia/Alzheimer’s. As the proposed use is not currently addressed in the adopted Development
Regulations, staff intends to add a definition and review criteria for this use during the next update to the
Development Regulations to adequately prepare for any future proposals that are similar in nature. Staff

Leavenworth Planning Commission 2 December 2, 2019



has researched how other municipalities in the metropolitan area handle this type of use and will have draft
language ready for review by this body during the annual update to the Development Regulations.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included
herein, subject to the following conditions:

1. The operation shall be limited to a maximum of 16 adult participants.
2. No medical services shall be offered in conjunction with the facility.

Failure to maintain compliance with all conditions shall result in revocation of the Special Use Permit.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions.

e Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission.

e Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

Madam Leonhard opened the public hearing.

Elaine Belardo approached the board stating she has some a dispute with the definition being used. She
further stated there is a need for services for families living with dementia. Her husband was diagnosed at
the age of 50. She can drive up to 40 miles one-way in order to take her husband to a non-medical support
group he attends twice a week. This type of service is not available in Leavenworth County. Programs like
this can delay placement into a long-term care facility.

Mrs. Belardo and her husband, Jose, started a nonprofit organization called The Deeper Window
Association, which is a non-medical dementia education program that engages and empowers people living
with dementia while providing respite care for their partners. This is a needed service in Leavenworth
County. Mrs. Belardo further stated people in the early to moderate stages of this disease do not need nor
are they responsive to the term adult daycare.

Mr. Wiedower stated his mother died of Alzheimer’s so he understands the need for a program like this. His
concern is with security. He wants to know what controls are in place to contain people so they do not
wander off.

Mrs. Belardo stated the program is stage specific. One of the eligibility requirements is that the participant
is not an elopement risk; they are not going to wander off. There are many stages to this disease. The
proposed program is only for the early onset of the disease. Furthermore, the building has three doors and
two providers. The providers are with the participants doing activities together. They will move as a group
to the next activity. Restrooms are on the interior of the building not the exterior.

Ms. Jeannie Reader, Licensed Master Social Worker, approached the board stating she created the program
9-years ago. In that time, she has never had anyone elope. After assessment, if a participant is found to be
too far along with the disease, they will not be eligible for this particular program that is proposed. A
program that keeps the participants active and engaged will delay placement and beyond that, will help
them maintain relationships.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 3 December 2, 2019



Ms. Reader further stated the group of 16 people she worked with in 2018 made 3,997 sandwiches, 1,200
sack lunches for two local food pantries in the Kansas City area, made enough soup to feed 385 people at a
food kitchen, they made and sold 120 jars of soup mixes and 60 jars of cookies/brownies to raise money to
help fund Christmas gifts. For Christmas they made 70 snuggle packs, which includes a 45”x60” fleece
blanket, a children’s book and a 12”-16" stuffed animal. With support, these folks can remain active and be
engaged with their community.

Mr. Wiedower asked what would happen if an individual progressed to a stage that would make them no
longer eligible for this program.

Ms. Reader stated if someone progresses to the point where they can no longer participate in the program,
the family is notified. Ms. Reader will assist the family in transitioning to a different facility or program.

Mr. Karrasch asked for clarification if the term “adult daycare” is incorrect.

Mrs. Belardo responded that adult daycare is incorrect and an adult daycare would require a licensure and is
more medical. The program proposed is an arts and inspiration program.

Mr. Karrasch stated he wants clarity so moving forward after the beginning of the year this need is properly
named/identified.

Mrs. Belardo stated it is “social engagement for people who are living with dementia”. It offers participants
the opportunity to socially engage with their peers and socially engage with their community. Art and
inspiration are the methods used.

Ms. Hurley noted for the commission that when Mrs. Belardo brought the proposal to staff, she reached out
to the Mid America Regional Council, who in turn reached out to other communities in the region to see
how they address this type of use. Every community calls it something a little different in their definitions
and addresses it a little bit differently. As with most uses, staff needs to settle on a word or phrase to call it
that may not be 100% representative of what goes on; but we need to be able to cover sort of a range of
uses within a phrase or title that we are assigning to something. Most of the other cities in the region do
have a variation on a care facility that would provide this type of service.

Mary Vardeman, 1802 Cleveland Ter, approached the board stating she lives in the neighborhood and
supports the proposed use.

Rev. Dr. Dave York, Pastor of First United Methodist Church of Leavenworth, believes The Deeper Window
Project is a great group to partner with. The church provides respite care for the caregivers once a week for
three hours. He believes this program can draw the community together and is an advocate for the project.

Shalay Harris, Program Director for the Heart of America Chapter of the Alzheimer’s Association, stated she
has been a public health nurse for 15-years and has worked with Jose on many levels. The program will help
decrease isolation and keep participants in their homes for as long as possible. She is in support of the
project. There are resources and support coming from the Heart of America Association to help The Deeper
Window Project.

Joseph Clark lives close to 729 Pennsylvania and is in favor of the project.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 4 December 2, 2019



Bill MacTomey, member of the finance council for Sacred Heart and St. Casmir and representing the
property owner of 729 Pennsylvania. Mr. MacTomey provided some history of the property. They have
reviewed The Deeper Window Project proposal and are supportive of the project.

Karen Rim, Board Certified Music Therapist, stated music therapy is beneficial to people with Alzheimer’s
because music is globally processed, which means it bypasses the language centers and goes to the
emotional centers of the brain where memory is stored. Music improves mood states, it activates
movement, triggers endorphins to feel good, etc. This disease is very isolating, which is why this program is
very important and much needed in Leavenworth.

With no one else wishing to speak, Madam Leonhard closed the public hearing and called for discussion
among the commissioners.

Mr. Wiedower stated he is glad they clarified the point on “adult daycare”. He believes “social engagement”
or “arts and inspiration” are much more descriptive of the intent. Mr. Wiedower further stated he
remembers years ago when Leavenworth started the Shelter of Hope and a daycare center. Hundreds of
volunteers worked the Shelter of Hope, which not only helps people in need but it brings dignity to all
involved. It is a win-win for everyone. Mr. Wiedower believes the same thing for the proposed Special Use
Permit.

Ms. Leonhard agrees that the interaction and engagement people have with each other is a positive
experience for everyone. The proposed use allows people to feel safe and not go through this alone.

Mr. Byrne also believes it is a great idea. Mr. Byrne asked staff if the special use is approved then Mrs.
Belardo is the special use owner but what happens if Mrs. Belardo leaves.

Ms. Hurley responded the special use is for the Deeper Window Project Organization not Mrs. Belardo
specifically.

Mr. Byrne asked if the special use is granted for only one year.

Ms. Hurley responded the special use permit would be granted for this organization, for this use, at this
particular location. If the organization wanted to move to a different location, it would need to be re-
evaluated at that point.

Mr. Byrne asked if a condition regarding the hours of operation should be included.

Ms. Hurley stated that would be up to the commission if they wanted to add that condition to the special
use permit.

Mr.Burke asked if the commission would need to come back to do this process all over again if the name
“adult daycare” changed when reviewing the Development Regulations next year.

Ms. Hurley responded this would be issued as it is and then moving forward if the commission adopts
different regulations, it would be from that point forward.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 5 December 2, 2019



Ms. Bohnsack stated this is a much needed service. Ms. Bohnsack is currently her husband’s caregiver.
When she first started using respite care, she felt guilty but her husband benefited from it as much as she
did. This is an absolute need for the community.

With no further discussion, Madam Leonhard called for a motion. Ms. Bohnsack moved to approve a special
use permit for an adult daycare center at 729 Pennsylvania Avenue with the following conditions:

1. The operation shall be limited to a maximum of 16 adult participants.
2. No medical services shall be offered in conjunction with the facility.

3. Hours of operation shall be Monday — Friday from 8a.m. — 5p.m.
The motion was seconded by Mr. Burke and approved by a vote of 6-0.

2. 2019-16 REZ - 1101 N. 7™ STREET

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2019-16 REZ — 1001 N. 7t" Street. The applicant is requesting
a rezoning of their property from R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential District to GBD,
General Business District. The property used to be a church, Life Connections Ministries, which
vacated in the summer of 2019, and has remained vacant to this date.

Madam Chairman Leonhard called for the staff report.

City Planner Jackie Porter stated the applicant, Development Inc., owned by Jeremy Greenamyre, is
requesting a rezoning of the property located at 1001 N. 7t Street from R1-6, High Density Single Family
Residential District to GBD, General Business District. The property used to be a church, Life Connections
Ministries, which vacated in the summer of 2019, and has remained vacant to this date.

The rezoning is being requested by the property owner to allow the zoning to accurately represent the
intent of use of the structure, and to correlate with surrounding commercial zoning. Prior uses of the
property have been a general business commercial use since 1955. In 1955, the existing building was
constructed as an office building, and maintained the use of the building as office space, until the recent use
of the building as an assembly hall for the Life Connections Ministries. All prior uses are allowed in GBD
zoning.

The applicant suggested that there might be minor changes to the exterior of the structure to maintain the
aesthetics of the building.

CONDITIONS OF DETERMINATION

Whenever the Planning Commission of City Commission takes action on an application for amendment to
these Development Regulations, and such proposed amendment is not a general revision of existing
ordinances, but one which will affect specific property, the Planning Commission and City Commission shall
consider the following factors:

a) The character of the neighborhood;

The subject property is the site of the former Life Connections Ministries building, which is currently
vacant. To the south is a multi-story apartment building. To the southeast of the office building is a
vacant commercial building. To the east is Excellent Choice, a restaurant. To the north is a

Leavenworth Planning Commission 6 December 2, 2019



b)

d)

f)

h)

barbershop. The remainder of the neighborhood consists of single-family homes. The subject
property is located along North 7t Street, which is classified as a collector street and designed to
handle a moderate volume of traffic. To the west of the building is a parking lot that was designed
to facilitate the customer base for the building.

The zoning and use of properties nearby;

To the south of the subject property is a multi-story apartment building, zoned OBD, Office Business
District. To the southeast of the office building is a vacant commercial building, zoned GBD, General
Business District. To the east is Excellent Choice, restaurant, and a vacant building zoned ODB. To
the north is a barbershop, zoned OBD. To the west is a single-family resident zoned ODB. The
remainder of the neighborhood consist of single-family homes zoned R1-6, High Density Single
Family Residential District.

The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
The subject property was built in 1955 as an office building. The building has been used as an office
building and an assembly hall since construction, and is unsuited for residential use.

The extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property;

The proposed rezoning should have little detrimental effect upon surrounding properties. The
subject building has been used for general business district qualified uses since its construction in
1955. No significant effect on nearby property is anticipated due to the rezoning.

The length of time the subject property has remained vacant as zoned,;
The existing building has consistently operated in a general business district use since construction in

1955. The last remaining tenant vacated the building in the summer of 20189.

The relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare by the reduction of
the value of the landowner’s property as compared to the hardship imposed by such reduction upon
the individual landowner;

The proposed rezoning will have a positive effect on public health and welfare by providing a correct
zoning to correlate with the surrounding properties along a moderately used collector street, which
has been proposed by the 2010 Comprehensive Plan to be zoned commercial.

The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request.
The conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive Land Use

Plan being utilized by the city;

The area is identified as appropriate for Institutional uses on the Future Land Use map. Therefore,
staff finds the proposed use to be in conformance with the overall goals of the adopted
Comprehensive Plan.

Such other factors as may be relevant to a particular proposed amendment. The factors considered
in taking action on any proposed amendment shall be included in the minutes or otherwise be made
part of the written record.

No other factors.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 7 December 2, 2019



REZONING ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Recommend approval of the rezoning request from R1-6 to GBD to the City Commission
e Recommend denial of the rezoning request from R1-6 to GBD to the City Commission

e Table the issue for additional information/consideration

Ms. Bohnsack asked if a martial arts school was located there at one time.

Ms. Hurley stated she does not believe so but the owner is present and would be better at answering that
question.

Mr. Byrne asked if the property is rezoned to GBD and a church wanted to move there, is that allowed.
Ms. Hurley responded in the affirmative.

Mr. Burke stated the rezoning seems to make sense given the topic in September when the commission
talked about the North Gateway project. This seems to be supportive of developing that two block area to
the north.

Ms. Hurley stated this is the only residentially zoned property along the whole 7 Street corridor. Ms.
Hurley further stated she is not sure why there are these pockets throughout town where the zoning does
not correlate to any issue that has ever been there. The building was constructed prior to zoning, which she
believes zoning took place around 1964. The current rezoning request is just brining the zoning to match
what the building was constructed for.

Ms. Bohnsack stated she drove by there and there are several businesses in that area already. It is obviously
a commercial building and the rezoning request would be a correction to the current zoning.

Ms. Hurley mentioned the zoning of the property to the west of the subject property, which is OBD. Staff
looked through old ordinances thinking maybe the subject property had been rezoned at some point but
was not showing on the map but staff could not find anything to support that theory.

With no further discussion about the staff report, Madam Leonhard opened the public hearing.

With no one wishing to speak, Madam Leonhard closed the public hearing and called for a motion. Based on
the findings as stated and the information provided, Mr. Byrne moved to recommend approval to the City
Commission the rezoning request for property located at 1001 N. 7t Street from R1-6 to GBD; seconded by
Mr. Wiedower and approved by a vote of 6-0.

Ms. Hurley stated tonight is Ms. Leonhard’s last meeting as a Planning Commissioner as she was elected to
the City Commission and presented Ms. Leonhard with a certificate.

Mr. Karrasch asked if the commission needs to vote on a new officer.

Ms. Hurley responded the mayor is responsible for appointing a new member for the Planning Commission.
This will take place sometime after the new mayor is elected on December 10%.

Mr. Burke asked if the City Commission chose a consultant for the Comprehensive Plan.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 8 December 2, 2019



Ms. Hurley stated the City Commission decided to wait until December 10™ to discuss and select a
consultant.

Ms. Bohnsack asked if staff received her list of items she had questions about or wanted updates to.

Ms. Hurley stated staff received the list on Tuesday; however, with being out of the office for the holidays
staff did not have time to get through it. Information/updates will be provided at the next meeting.

Mr. Karrasch asked if there is anything new with the North Gateway.

Ms. Hurley stated the City Commission approved the proposed project plan that went to the Planning
Commission. This sets in place the finance mechanism to move forward.

With no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:05 p.m.

JH/mb

Leavenworth Planning Commission 9 December 2, 2019



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2020-01-SUP
869 Sherman Avenue

JANUARY 6, 2020
SUBJECT:
A request for a Special Use Permit to allow a two-family dwelling in the R1-6 zoning district.

= >

Prepatred/BY: RevieWed By: I

N
Juli rley Paul Kramer
Director of Planning and City Manager

Community Development

NATURE OF REQUEST

The applicant, Echelon Property Management, is requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a two-family dwelling in
the R1-6 zoning district, located at 869 Sherman Avenue. Two-family dwellings are allowed in the R1-6 zoning
district with the approval of a Special Use Permit.

The structure had previously functioned as a two-family dwelling before it was damaged by fire on April 1, 2019.
Prior to the fire, the structure had been considered an existing legal nonconforming use. Section 1.05.D of the
adopted Development Regulations states:

If a structure devoted to a nonconforming use is damaged or destroyed by more than
fifty percent (50%) of its fair market value, such building shall not be restored if the use
if such building is not in conformance with the regulations of the zoning district in which
it is located.

Per the applicant, the structure sustained damage in excess of 50% of its fair market value. The applicant intends
to renovate and restore the structure to its previous use, to include new electrical, plumbing, HVAC, walls,
ceilings, doors, windows, fixtures, cabinetry, flooring and appliances in the lower level unit. The upper level unit
was not damaged during the fire, and renovation work in that unit will include paint, flooring and appliances. The
exterior of the structure will be cleaned and painted, and the driveway will be paved.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:
1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies with all provisions of City of Leavenworth Development
Regulations.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




2. The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

Prior to being damaged by fire, the property filled a need in the community by providing a two-family
housing option. Restoring the property to its previous use will continue to fill that need.

3. The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood in
which it is located.

Staff does not feel that the proposed use will cause any substantial injury to the value of other property in
the neighborhood.

4. The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or
conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to it are
such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent development
and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district regulations.

No new structures or building modifications are proposed as part of this special use permit. The property
will continue to function as it did prior to being damaged by fire, with the benefit of exterior cosmetic
improvements and a driveway and parking area that is brought into conformance with current regulations
by being paved.

Notification was sent to property owners within 200’ of the subject property, as required by Kansas statute. Since
notifications were mailed, staff has received no comments or inquiries.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included herein.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

® Motion, based upon findings as stated and conditions as presented, to recommend approval to the City
Commission with included conditions

* Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission
Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




2020-01-SUP 869 Sherman
E)Ifﬂ‘\k‘fv REfS

i m

g

—

-l

F5255825. 521319 101 00%
] ] $

CHOGTAW ST,

1:2,257

SO
P P iy MU =
1/2/2020, 10:11:07 AM
0 0.01 0.03 0.05 mi
—_—— —
0 0.02 0.04 0.09 km

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
National Weather Service |



_mEL&ﬁ‘lﬁ! :

ARE:ST 3

1/2/2020, 10:12:20 AM

1:2,257
0 0.01  0.03 0.05 mi
L 1 1 1 1 L 1 1 1
_— 1
0 0.02 0.04 0.09 km

Esri, HERE, Garmin, (c) OpenStreetMap contributors, and the GIS user
community

Web AppBuilder for ArcGIS
National Weather Service |



Case No: /o285 -0\ SUP

Application No. (0325
Fee (non-refundable) $350.00
Filing Date A\ -\ & \Q
NLE NWOR «4_1 Fee Paid/Receipted By VM/}%\
= —— Publication Date \2\2-\9
SPECIAL USE PERMIT
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS Hearing Date Sevwwncu L, 20920
\

As provided in Section 2.04 of the 2016 Development Regulations, application is hereby made for a

SPECIAL USE PERMIT for the operation of a: Au-O\oy ey My @\ -{ » Zordan ANk
- X

in accordance with the attached site plan on the following described property:

Address: 8(.0q Sﬁrman Q‘De, lmV@U\HH)Ke) lQ‘LODq'P)

Legal Description: (Attach a full legal description provided by the Register of Deeds Office)

Real Estate PID #:

Zoning: \ - (o | Historic District:

I/We, the undersigned, depose and state we are the owners of the above described property:

Name(s) of Owner (print): Avsﬂh n{':;u&cb/-mm, wene g
\) i

Owner 2706 Jeterson S*
Address: Kansas Cly mo c4rd
ContactNo. | 9/3) 7065.02 2¢ Email:‘_ aushn . frve pH%.né, @ &mw/. COng

| e
Signature of Owner(s): 9 =

WS € AMBER BUENO
State of . \ [- ' ! . ) Notary Public - Stale of K§n§35_ e
County of __ DNV ) (SEAL) My Appointment Expires (12 & £ &
[

Notary Public: AN\ 1244 B WWENN. L / ¢} AN 47, U.‘ il
Signed or attested before me on: |7 LT L\ /v /() My appointment expires: :

If business is operated by someone other than the owner, provide name and address of operator(s).

. r . & \ : B, £ o : O
Name of Applicant(s): (_'_\.,\(\Lj\r:(“\ Nrooe £ A e Lo~en & x A O S HE
: N :
Address: A\ -5 - 515\
Contact No. | Q) NOS-oa e\ | Email [Nocuan . e ndeala esnnal . ¢ ona

NOTE: All signatures must be in ink. Signature of owner(s) must be secured and notarized.
Check list below...

Non-Refundable Fee of $350.00 is due at time of application

Attach list of the owners for property within two hundred (200) feet of the subject property

Attach full legal description (may be provided by the Register of Deeds Office)

Site Plan drawn to scale (See General Instructions)

Supporting documentation (See General Instructions)

Special Use Permit May 2019



November 18, 2019

To whom it may concern,

This is a letter of intent for repairs to the duplex located at 869 Sherman Ave.
in Leavenworth, Kansas. After the fire on April 1, 2019, we have removed the
interior walls on the lower level and removed the front porch roof do to fire
damage. We would like to start the renovation process by installing all new
electrical, plumbing, hvac, walls, ceiling, a few windows, doors, fixtures,
cabinetry, flooring and appliances in the lower level unit. Since the upper unit
was not damaged we intend to paint, install new flooring and new appliances.
The exterior will be cleaned and painted where needed upon completion of
the renovation. The driveway and parking area will also be brought up to
code.

If you should have any further questions please feel free to contact me.

Bryan Asher

Service First Remolding
Echelon Property Management
400 Shawnee Street
Leavenworth, Kansas 66048
913.306.5751

Property legal description;

CENTRAL SUBDIVISION, BLOCK 12, W19'LT 13 & ALL LTS 14-15






G i g

e WY

AV




